
 

    

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE  
PLAN COMMISSION & ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  

Tuesday, February 15, 2022 at 7:00 P.M. 
Village Hall, 3110 RFD, Old McHenry Road, Long Grove, Illinois  

 
THE VILLAGE HALL WILL NOT BE ACCESSIBLE FOR THIS MEETING. ACCESS SHALL ONLY BE AVAILABLE AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88274752626?pwd=QUZFMmp5d1RNcGh3My8xUmx2NFVwUT09#success 

+1 312 626  6799 US (Chicago) 
 

Meeting ID: 882 7475 2626    Passcode: 132435 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. VISITORS BUSINESS 
 

3. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. PCZBA-22-01 – Public Hearing – The Orchards of Long Grove Planned Unit Development 
3992, 3993, 3994, 3995, 3996, 3997, and 3998 Orchard Lane, Long Grove, IL  60047 
1) PUD (Planned Unit Development) Amendment 

 
4. MEETING MINUTES  

 
a. Approval of the September 7, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes  

 
5. OTHER BUSINESS  

 
6. ADJOURNMENT 

 
UPCOMING MEETING - Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting: March 1, 2022 @ 7:00 PM  

 
The Village of Long Grove is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 Individuals 
with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 
to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or 
the facilities, are requested to phone the Long Grove Village Manager at 847-634-9440 or TDD 847-634- 9650 
promptly to allow the Village of Long Grove to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88274752626?pwd=QUZFMmp5d1RNcGh3My8xUmx2NFVwUT09#success


Minutes of Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting 
 September 7, 2021 

 

 

 
Page 1 of 3 

 

MINUTES OF PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 

Meeting called to order at 7:00 p.m.   
 
Amanda Orenchuk, Planning Services for Long Grove, was asked to take minutes in the absence of Secretary Brett Smith. 
  
ATTENDANCE 
 

Present: Chairwoman Helen Wilson; Magdalena Dworak; Jeff Kazmer; and Richard Terrett 
Absent: Brooke Bauer; Chuck Cohn; Shelly Rubin; and Brett Smith, Secretary 
Also Present: Attorney Betsy Gates-Alford; Amanda Orenchuk, Interim Planning Services; Andrew Venamore, 

Architect at Heartland Garage Builders; Arthur Ott, Homeowner; Karen Ott, Homeowner; and Pam 
Eulberg, interested visitor. 

 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTARY 
 

Pam Eulberg, visitor, advised she was attending due to a potential future case. 
 

Declaration of Emergency read by Chairwoman Wilson. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AND FINDINGS OF FACT – PCZBA21-01 – 7033 Willow Springs Road – Variation for a detached garage 
 
STAFF OVERVIEW 
 
Chairwoman Wilson read a bit from the report regarding the topic of discussion. A. Orenchuk provided a quick background 
on the proposed project.  The request is a straightforward variation.  The location of the neighborhood has smaller lot 
sizes.  Many homes and structures were built in the County and then annexed to Long Grove.  The request is not out of 
character with the neighborhood and surrounding properties.  She advised the Commission to review the application and 
staff report that provides more plans and background.   
 
PETITIONERS WERE SWORN IN 
 
Andrew Venamore, Architect with Heartland Garage Builders presented on behalf of Mr. and Mrs. Arthur and Karen Ott.  
The request is for a replacement detached garage.  The purpose of the new structure is to accommodate the owners RV.  
The owners also would like to have the vehicle under cover.  Mr. Ott uses the vehicles extensively.  He is a person with 
mobility disabilities and the vehicle helps him travel around.  The garage provides Mr. Ott room to maneuver around the 
RV and work on it while keeping it out of the elements.  Access from the garage into the house is through a covered 
breezeway.  The proposed garage does not propose to encroach further into the setback.  It would be less than the current 
setback.  Plans were presented on a share screen from the petitioner’s packet.   
 
OPEN FLOOR TO PUBLIC COMMENT 
 



Minutes of Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting 
 September 7, 2021 

 

 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

No public comments were made, but Mr. Venamore presented signed documents of “no objection” from two adjoining 
neighbors, see Attachment A to minutes. 
 
CLOSE FLOOR TO PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
 
Commissioner Kasmer stated he drove by the property and determined that it was not highly visible from the street.  
 
Commissioner Dworak echoed Commissioner Kasmer on the garage being somewhat hidden from the street and added 
she felt it would not interfere with anything.  She was encouraged by the sign off from the two neighbors. 
 
Commissioner Terrett advised he had no questions and was satisfied as the structure was replacing an existing structure 
that was similarly situated. 
 
Chairwoman Wilson stated that she also drove by and noticed the existing structure was not highly visible.  She wanted 
to understand the situation with an existing fence.  Mr. Ott, Mrs. Ott, and Mr. Venamore advised the fence belongs to the 
neighbor.  The fence is needed because of a dog at the neighbor’s house.  They have had discussions regarding it and the 
need for it to be rectified as the garage is moving further into the Ott property and away from the fence. Chairwoman 
Wilson advised she did not want it to become a dispute later on and wanted to point it out.   
 
The commission reviewed the Findings of Fact during the meeting.  
 
MOTION by M. Dworak, seconded by R. Terrett to recommend approval of a variation allow for a detached garage to be 
located closer than the required 40-foot setback, to a distance of 5.5 feet, to replace the garage at 7033 North Willow 

Springs Road. 
 

AYES: M. Dworak, R. Terrett, Chair H. Wilson, and J. Kazmer 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: B. Bauer, C. Cohn, and S. Rubin 
 
Motion Carried 4-0 

 
REVIEW/APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion by J. Kazmer, second by M. Dworak to approve the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting minutes 
of March 3, 2021. 
 

AYES: J. Kazmer, M. Dworak, Chair H. Wilson, and R. Terrett 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: B. Bauer, C. Cohn, and S. Rubin 
 
Motion Carried 4-0 

 
VILLAGE BOARD REPRESENTATIVES 
 

September 14, 2021: Magdalena Dworak 
 
September 28, 2021: Richard Terrett 

 



Minutes of Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting 
 September 7, 2021 

 

 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

MOTION by J. Kazmer, seconded by R. Terrett, to adjourn the Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting of September 1, 
2021. 

 
AYES: J. Kazmer, R. Terrett, Chair H. Wilson, and M. Dworak 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: B. Bauer, C. Cohn, and S. Rubin 
 
Motion Carried 4-0 

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:27 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Amanda Orenchuk 
Interim Planning Services 
 
cc: Attorney Betsy Gates-Alford 

Greg Jackson, Village Administrator 
 Board of Trustees 
 Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Commission Members 



 
    

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  
STAFF REPORT 

 
To:   Chairperson Wilson 

PCZBA Commissioners 
 
From:   Taylor Wegrzyn, VOM Village Planner 
 
Meeting Date:  February 15, 2022 
 
Property: The Orchards PUD 
 
Re:   PCZBA Request 22-01  

PUD Amendment Related to Front Load Garages 
 
Attachments: 1. Location Map 
  2. Standards for Granting a PUD  

3. Petitioner’s Packet 
 
 
Status:     Complete petition submitted 01/26/2022 
Referral by Village Board:  Not required 
Publication:    Daily Herald on January 31, 2022 
 
Applicant: Joe Gallo  
 
Subject Properties 
 

• 3992 through 3998 Orchard Lane, sequentially; and  
• 0 Old McHenry Road, PIN: 14-24-102-020 

 
History 
 
Mehran Farahmandpour and Joe Gallo of The Orchards of Long Grove, LLC proposed a development called the 
Orchards of Long Grove. They purchased an 11.88-acre property located at the southeast corner of Illinois Route 
22 and Old McHenry Road. This property was annexed into the Village of Long Grove and zoned R-2 Single-Family 
Residence District to be developed for seven, custom, single-family residences with one common outlot. The 
Orchards of Long Grove, LLC requested an amendment to the Long Grove Zoning Map to reclassify the property 
from R-1 to R-3 Single-Family Residential District which Preliminary PUD was approved on May 25, 2004, with 
Final PUD approval shortly thereafter. The first three homes were constructed between 2005 and 2007.  A fourth 
home was constructed in 2014.  
 



  Long Grove PCZBA 
  02/15/2022 
  Page 2 of 4 
 
 
 
In September 2021 a permit was submitted by Mr. Farahmandpour and Mr. Gallo to construct a new home at 
3992 Orchard Lane.  Community Development Services reviewed the plans, and a permit was issued in late fall.  
The foundation has been poured for this project. 
 
Subsequently, a permit was submitted for a new house on the neighboring lot, 3994 Orchard Lane.  During the 
review of this new structure, staff identified that all new homes within the PUD required Architectural Review. It 
was also realized that the subdivision was not in compliance with certain PUD and Zoning standards related to the 
percentage of homes with front load garages. The standard requires that no more than 25% of homes may have 
front load garages, however, the two existing homes in the subdivision with front load garages already exceeds 
this maximum (being 29% of the homes). The home at 3994 Orchard Lane, for which a permit was already issued, 
has a side load garage; however, the proposed home at 3992 Orchard Lane features a front load garage which 
would bring the subdivision to 49% of homes with front load garages.  
 
Both homes were brought to the Architectural Commission (AC) in a Special Meeting on January 18, 2022. The AC 
recommended approval of 3994 Orchard Lane as presented. Concerning 3992 Orchard Lane, the AC recommended 
approval conditioned upon Village Board approval of the necessary zoning relief to allow for the additional front 
load garage.  
 
Request 
 
The Petitioner is requesting an amendment to the Orchards Planned Unit Development. The PUD was approved 
on May 25, 2004 by Ordinance No. 2004-O-08. Specifically, the Petitioner’s request is to amend Section Four of 
the PUD Ordinance to permit an exception to Chapter 3, Section 5-3-11(B), Antimonotone Regulations of the Long 
Grove Municipal Code regarding garage orientations.  
 
Land Use, Zoning, and Locational Data 
 

1. Existing Zoning: R-3, PUD 
2. Proposed Zoning: Same 
3. Surrounding Land Uses:  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

4. Acreage: 11.88 acres 
5. Flood/Wetlands: According to LC Mapping, no identified floodplain/flood hazard areas, or wetlands 
 

  

Direction Existing Use Land Use Plan/Zoning 
North Residential Single Family Residential/R-1 
South Residential Single Family Residential/R-1 
East Residential Single Family Residential/R-1, PUD 
West Residential Lake County Forest Preserve  



  Long Grove PCZBA 
  02/15/2022 
  Page 3 of 4 
 
 
 
PUD Amendment 
 
The requested PUD Amendment would provide an exception to the Village’s Antimonotone Regulations to 
increase the maximum percentage of homes with front load garages from twenty-five (25) percent to forty-three 
(43) percent. The requested action would be applicable only to the properties subject to The Orchards PUD and 
would not impact other subdivisions, PUDs, or properties within the Village. 
 

 
Figure 1: Locations of Garages within the Orchards of Long Grove PUD 

Analysis 
 
Two of the seven homesites (29%) within the subdivision already feature homes built with front load garages 
which means that the subdivision already exceeds the maximum number of front load garages permitted. With 
only seven buildable lots in the subdivision, each home has a much larger bearing on the percentages than in a 
larger subdivision. The Architectural Commission has previously reviewed the existing homes within the PUD and 
have provided favorable recommendations for the two proposed homes.  
 
In their application, the Petitioner indicated that the shape of the property, location of a Scenic Corridor on the 
lot, and a designated septic field on the lot created conditions which necessitated a front load garage design for 
this homesite. Additionally, the Petitioner provided signatures of approval from the current homeowners within 
the PUD. 
 
Should the PCZBA recommend approval of the request, Staff recommend that the Amendment further condition 
that the exemption applies only to the built and proposed structures with front load garages (3992, 3996, and 
3998 Orchard Lane). Damage or demolition of one of these structures to the extent of more than fifty (50) percent 
of the gross floor area of the structure shall reduce the maximum percentage of front load garages within the PUD 
by the applicable percentage.  
 

Front LoadFront Load
Front LoadFront Load

Front LoadFront Load

Side LoadSide Load

Side LoadSide Load
Side LoadSide Load

ProposedProposed

ProposedProposed

FutureFuture
HomesiteHomesite



  Long Grove PCZBA 
  02/15/2022 
  Page 4 of 4 
 
 
 
The PCZBA should consider the proposed PUD Amendment with respect to the following findings of facts 
applicable to Special Use Permits and Planned Unit Developments: 
 

Special Use Permit Findings of Fact 
 
• It is deemed necessary for the public convenience at that location. 
• It is so designed, located, and proposed to be operated that the public health, safety, and welfare will 

be protected. 
• It will not cause substantial injury to the value of other lots in the neighborhood in which it is located. 
• It conforms to the applicable regulations of the district in which it is to be located, except as may be 

recommended by the Plan Commission and approved by the Village Board or, except in the case of a 
planned development; and 

• Owner can demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the Village, that it has the capability and capacity, 
including, without limitation, the technological, personnel, and financial resources, to complete the 
project as proposed. 

 
PUD Findings of Fact 
 
• In what respects the proposed plan is or is not consistent with the stated purpose of the Planned Unit 

Development regulations. 
• The extent to which the proposed plan meets the requirements and standards of the Planned Unit 

Development regulations set forth in this Section. 
• The extent to which the proposed plan departs from the zoning and subdivision regulations otherwise 

applicable to the subject lot, including, but not limited to, the density, dimension, area, bulk and use, 
and the reasons why such departures are or are not deemed to be in the public interest. 

• The physical design of the proposed plan and the manner in which said design does or does not make 
adequate provision for public services, provide adequate control over vehicular traffic, provide for, and 
protect designated common open space and further the amenities of light and air, recreation, and visual 
enjoyment. 

• The relationship and compatibility, beneficial or adverse, or the proposed plan to the adjacent 
properties and neighborhood. 

• The desirability of the proposed plan to physical development, tax base and economic wellbeing of the 
entire community. 

• The conformity with the intent and spirit of the comprehensive Village plan. 
 
Findings of Fact 
 
The ZBA should review this petition in accordance with the criteria identified above and make their findings of 
fact accordingly. Any standards (or other conditions) which are recommended should also be considered with this 
petition as applicable. 
 
 
TW/JLM/AO 



Legend:
: Proposed Property

Location Map: 
3992 Orchard Lane, Long Grove, IL 

Subject Property



(E)   Standards for Planned Unit Developments. 
1.   Special Use Permit Standards. No special use permit for a planned unit 

development shall be recommended or granted pursuant to this section unless 
the owner shall establish that the proposed development will meet each of the 
standards made applicable to special use permits pursuant to section 5-11-17 of 
this chapter. 

2.  Additional Standards for All Planned Unit Developments. No special use permit for 
a planned unit development shall be recommended or granted unless the owner 
shall establish that the proposed development will meet each of the following 
additional standards: 
(a)  Variance From Applicable District Regulations. The degree to which the 

development differs in its performance from what would be possible 
under the normal standards of the district in which it is located. in 
evaluating this element, the plan commission shall look for the following: 
(1)   Residential Developments. 

A.   The proposed development has substantially increased 
the amount of common open space above what would 
have been required to preserve and protect conservation 
areas, but such common open space must be 
concentrated (as opposed to fragmented) and should 
provide for either public access or readily accessible public 
vistas; or 

B.   The proposed development plan has provided a trail 
system for residents; or 

C.   The amount of landscaping is substantially greater than 
the minimum required by this title. 

(2)   Permitted Nonresidential Uses. When commercial uses are 
proposed in an area where existing uses are at a much higher 
intensity than those permitted in the B2 district, the planned unit 
development is intended to permit development that is superior 
to that of the surrounding uses, but which may be of a higher 
intensity than the B2 district would permit as a matter of right. 
The commercial use shall demonstrate that the signs are fully in 
keeping with village ordinances, and are substantially better than 
those on surrounding lots; and 

(b)   Promotion of Character. The degree to which the development exhibits 
extra care and attention to details which enhance the character of the 
development and promote the rural character of the village that sets the 
development apart from projects that could be built without the aid of 
this section. The plan commission shall be looking for the following traits: 
(1)  Roads on the periphery of the development shall be planted with 

hedgerows to screen views into a development; 
(2)   Buildings in open fields shall be masked by berms and reforested 

areas; 

https://library.municode.com/il/long_grove/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_TIT5ZORE_CH11ZOADEN_5-11-17SPUSPE


(3)   Buildings shall have a low horizontal profile when built in old 
fields or grasslands; 

(4)   Front yards or rights-of-way should be planted with natural 
landscaping; 

(5)   Open spaces larger than scenic easements are preferred and 
should be planted with prairie mixes or reforested. 

(c)   Design Enhancements. The degree to which any requested increase in 
density reflects an investment in better design, landscaping, or facilities. 
The plan commission should have review materials presented by the 
developer indicating that the credits sought are based in real investments 
in excess of what is required under the minimum standards of the 
ordinance. 

(d)   Amenities. The degree to which the developer has gone to better preserve 
critical natural environments, restore or mitigate degraded or distressed 
environments, alleviated off site problems, or provided other 
improvements that benefit all residents of the community. The plan 
commission should review both an inventory of natural features on the 
site and plans demonstrating the developer is taking greater care in 
preserving resources than is required by the village ordinances. 

(e)   Comprehensive Plan. A planned unit development must conform with the 
intent and spirit of the proposals of the comprehensive village plan. 

(f)   Minimum Area. The site of the planned unit development must be under 
single ownership and/or unified control and be not less than five acres in 
area. 

(g)   Compatibility. The uses permitted in a planned unit development must be 
of a type and so located so as to exercise no undue detrimental influence 
upon surrounding properties. 

(h)   Need. A clear showing of need must be made by means of an economic 
feasibility, land utilization and marketing study. 

(i)   Space Between Buildings. The minimum horizontal distance between 
buildings shall be not less than 20 feet or equal to the height of adjacent 
freestanding, unattached building, whichever is greater, except that 
principal or accessory buildings in a planned unit development located 
within the HR-1 district may have a lesser separation or even be attached 
provided that such planned unit development is served by a fire 
suppression system meeting applicable building and fire code standards. 

(j)   Yards. The required yards along the periphery of the planned unit 
development shall be at least equal in width or depth to that of the 
adjacent zoning district; provided, however, the required yards within 
any lot and along the periphery of a planned unit development approved 
pursuant to the HR-1 district regulations may be established at a lesser 
depth, so long as the approved yard depth, together with any proposed 
or existing landscaping, fencing or other screening or buffering 
technique, is sufficient to establish a satisfactory buffer between the 



planned unit development and adjoining properties and/or residential 
land uses. 

(k)   Parking Requirements. Adequate parking shall be provided and in no 
event shall the parking be less than that provided for in other sections of 
this title. 

(l)   Traffic. Adequate provision shall be made to provide ingress and egress 
so designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets. 

(m)   Residential District Density. 
(1)   Calculation of Density. Except as otherwise expressly allowed 

under subsection (E)2(m)(2) or (E)2(m)(3) of this section, the 
overall density within a planned unit development shall be 
consistent with the density allowed in the district in which the 
planned unit development is located. Except as provided in 
subsection (E)2(m)(2) of this section, no lot within a planned unit 
development shall contain less than 33,000 square feet in lot area. 
The number of lots permitted within a planned unit development 
will be based upon the gross area of the planned unit 
development excluding: a) exterior roads and b) 50 percent of 
wetlands and conservancy district areas. 

(2)   Exception for Annexed Lots. Notwithstanding the requirements of 
subsection (E)2(m)(1) of this section, the village board may, 
pursuant to an annexation agreement with the owner of property 
located in unincorporated Lake County and proposed to be 
annexed to the village, authorize an exception from the 33,000 
square foot lot area requirement in subsection (E)2(m)(1) of this 
section, but only to the extent that the applicable county 
development regulations would have permitted development on 
less than 33,000 square feet in lot area. 

(3)   Density Increase. The plan commission may recommend, and the 
village board may approve, an increase in the number of lots of 
up to 15 percent over what is otherwise allowed in the district in 
which the planned unit development is located based on the 
developer's ability to substantially improve the quality of the 
project in light of the goals and standards in this section and this 
code. as part of such increase in the number of lots, an 
appropriate decrease in average lot area within the planned unit 
development may also be authorized. in no event may the lot area 
for any individual lot be less than 33,000 square feet, unless as 
provided in accordance with subsection (E)2(m)(2) of this section. 

(n)   Business District Density and Height. 
(1)   HR District Density Increase. The plan commission may 

recommend, and the village board may approve, an increase in 
the maximum allowable gross floor area or impervious coverage 
ratio within any approved planned unit development within the 
HR district not to exceed 20 percent, and the maximum allowable 



floor area for any one lot of record within any approved planned 
unit development in the HR district not to exceed 30 percent. 

(2)   HR-1 District Density Increase. The plan commission may 
recommend, and the village board may approve, an increase in 
the maximum allowable gross floor area or impervious coverage 
ratio within any planned unit development approved pursuant to 
the HR-1 district regulations, so that: a) the maximum floor area 
within the planned development does not exceed 23 percent of 
the total area of the planned development (including property 
within or without the HR-1 district), b) the maximum allowable 
floor area for any one lot of record within any approved planned 
unit development in the HR-1 district not to exceed 40 percent of 
the lot area, and c) the maximum impervious surface coverage 
within the planned development does not exceed 75 percent of 
the total area of the planned development (including property 
within or without the HR-1 district). 

(3)   Height Increase in the HR-1 District. Within any planned unit 
development approved pursuant to the HR-1 district regulations, 
the plan commission may recommend, and the village board may 
approve, an increase in the maximum allowable height of 
architectural features not intended for occupancy of up to 40 feet 
above the highest ground level point on the property included 
within the planned unit development (measured based upon the 
proposed finished grading). in considering a request for such 
additional height, the plan commission should review whether 
any such architectural features enhance the architectural 
character and improve the overall quality of design of the 
proposed planned unit development, as well as whether such 
features are designed to minimize potential impacts on nearby 
properties. 

(o)   Compliance with Subdivision Regulations and Plat Act. All planned unit 
developments, whether or not they are by definition subject to the Long 
Grove subdivision regulations or the Illinois Plat Act, shall comply with all 
standards, regulations and procedures of the subdivision regulations and 
the plat act except as is expressly provided otherwise in this section, or 
varied by the board of trustees pursuant to subsection (G) of this section 
or the applicable section of the subdivision regulations. 

3.   Additional Standards for Specific Planned Unit Developments. Where the district 
regulations authorizing any planned development use in a particular district 
impose standards to be met by such planned unit development in such district, 
a special permit for such development shall not be recommended or granted 
unless the owner shall establish compliance with such special standards. 






















